ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVM TTEE
March 21, 2006
8:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Representative Jim El ki ns
Representative Bob Lynn

Representati ve Jay Ranras
Representative Berta Gardner
Representati ve Max G uenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N&( S) :

STATE COW SSI ON FOR HUMAN RI GHTS
- HELD

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 27

Uging the United States Congress to pass |egislation anmending
the Alaska Native Vietnam Veterans Allotnment Act to allow
deserving veterans to obtain allotnments of vacant land wthin
the State of Alaska; and to reopen and |egislatively approve
allotnments in the Tongass National Forest.

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 45
"An Act anmending the definition of the term 'lobbyist' in the
Regul ation of Lobbying Act; and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 344
"An Act relating to the commssioner of admnistration's
appoi nting agents to perform for conpensati on certain

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 21, 2006



transactions related to vehicles; and providing for an effective
date."

- BILL HEARI NG CANCELED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HIR 27

SHORT TI TLE:. ALLOTMENTS FOR NATI VE VI ETNAM VETERANS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) COGHI LL

01/ 18/ 06 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

01/ 18/ 06 (H) MV, STA

03/ 02/ 06 (H MLV AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

03/ 02/ 06 (H) Moved CSHIR 27(M.V) Qut of Committee
03/ 02/ 06 (H M NUTE( MLV)

03/ 03/ 06 (H M.V RPT CS(M.V) 4DP

03/ 03/ 06 (H) DP: THOVAS, ELKINS, DAHLSTROM LYNN
03/ 21/ 06 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 45

SHORT TITLE: CONTRI BUTI ONS, LOBBYI STS, DI SCLOSURE
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) WEYHRAUCH

01/ 10/ 05 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 12/ 30/ 04
01/ 10/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 10/ 05 (H STA, JUD

02/ 23/ 06 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
02/ 23/ 06 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard
03/ 14/ 06 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
03/ 14/ 06 (H) Schedul ed But Not Heard
03/ 16/ 06 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
03/ 16/ 06 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 16/ 06 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 21/ 06 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

RANDALL H. ELEDGE, Appoi ntee

to the Human Ri ghts Commi ssi on

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Human Rights
Conmi ssi on.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL

Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 21, 2006



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HIR 27 as sponsor.

CAROL YEATMAN, Supervising Attorney

Native Al otnment Program

Al aska Legal Services Corporation

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 27.

JI'M Mc CRACKEN

Sewar d, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of hinself during the
heari ng on HIR 27.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:02:16 AM Represent ati ves
Gatto, Lynn, Gardner, and Seaton were present at the call to
order. Representatives Elkins, Ranras, and G uenberg arrived as
the nmeeting was in progress.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG( S)

State Comm ssion for Human Ri ghts

8:03: 23 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the first order of business was the
confirmation hearing on the State Conm ssion for Human Ri ghts.

8:03: 50 AM

RANDALL H. ELEDGE, Appointee to the Human Rights Conm ssion,
told the conmttee that he has been in Al aska since 1982. He
noted various capacities in which he has served, including on
the board of directors for Grl Scouts of America and the Better
Busi ness Bureau. He enphasized the inportance of giving back to
the state some of the things it has afforded himand his famly.
He noted that he has served on the Conm ssion of Human Rights
for one year, and he said not only has he found the experience
educational, but also he stated his belief that he has "nade a
contribution.”

8:04:52 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 21, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER told M. Eledge she ultimately would |ike
an explanation of the |anguage of 6 AAC 30.410(b) [regarding
comencenent of a hearing process], which read as foll ows:

(b) The <commssion shall request that the chief
adm nistrative |law judge appoint an adm nistrative |aw
judge to preside as the hearing examner at the

heari ng.
8:06: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noted that the Human Ri ghts Conmi ssion
used to have a web site with information about its nenbers and
activities. She said it appears there is no information
avai l able currently, and asked M. Eledge if he knows anything
about that.

8: 06: 58 AM

MR. ELEDGE said he wll talk to staff about that issue. He said
he thinks the web site is a great tool to use to get information
out to people in the state. He nmentioned issues related to
under f undi ng and bei ng under st af f ed.

8:07:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Eledge if he renenbers a
conversation held over the interim involving M. Eledge,
Representative Guenberg, and Tammy MIller, and, if so, if he
would relate it now.

8:09: 07 AM

MR. ELEDGE recalled that Representative Guenberg had opined
that some of the constituents in his district are not being
served. He also recalled that the topic of funding and being
short staffed at the Human Ri ghts Conmi ssion was broached.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG indicated that it was the view of [ M.

MIller] that it was not the case that [ Representative
Gruenberg's constituents need additional support], because "they
frosted their cupcakes better than people in Cceanview " He

asked if M. Eledge shared that view.

8:11: 09 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 21, 2006



MR. ELEDGE responded that he thinks there is a job to do within
the state, and the laws that exist apply to everyone, regardless
of their social or economic stature. If soneone is not taken
care of as state statutes demand, he said, then that person has
alegitimte claimto bring forward.

8:11:47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG brought to light for the commttee that
the aforenmentioned conversation pertained to the human rights
bill that is before the legislature, specifically to an adopted
anmendnent that [the Human Rights Conmi ssion] wanted renoved.
The amendnent would give people up to a year to bring a
conpl aint before the comm ssion, as opposed to only six nonths.
He asked M. Eledge for his response.

8:12: 33 AM

MR. ELEDGE said he renmenbers discussion regarding the economc
inpact and the caseload that would be brought about by the
anendnent. He said discussion also surrounded "the stal eness of
cases as they linger on." He opined that if the human rights
cases can be taken to closure nore quickly, then the state is
better served.

8:13:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he recalls the conversation
differently; he stated his recollection is that M. El edge
expressed the view that a quicker process better serves the
i nterest of the enployers.

8:14: 27 AM

MR. ELEDGE responded that that is not the way he renenbers the
conversation and that certainly was not his intent. He stated,
"Regardl ess of whether it's an enployer or an enployee, it still
has to be fair, just, and honest.” If an enployer or property

owner is allowed to continue with behavior that is not within
state law, he said, then that situation nust be changed as
qui ckly as possi bl e.

8:15:22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated his appreciation for having had
the opportunity to clarify the matter with M. El edge.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 21, 2006



The comm ttee took an at-ease from 8:15:58 AMto 8:17: 30 AM

8:17: 33 AM

MR. ELEDGE, in response to a request from Chair Seaton to
address Representative Gardner's previous question regarding the
regulation she had cited, recommended that Representative
Gardner speak with Paul a Hal ey about the matter.

8:20:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE = GARDNER, in response to Chair Seaton' s
interpretation of the previously cited new |anguage, said she
understands the |anguage, but would like to hear M. El edge

espouse whether or not he thinks it's "a good thing or a bad
t hing. "

MR. ELEDGE replied that because he has not yet been to a
hearing, he does not have the frame of reference with which to
respond.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked why, after one year serving on
the board, M. El edge has not yet been to a hearing.

MR. ELEDGE explained that he has been appointed to four cases,
but none of them have required a hearing.

8:21:31 AM

MR. ELEDGE, in response to Representative Guenberg, said he
does not know the tinme period between a filing of an action and
t he commencenent of a hearing, but deferred again to Paula Hal ey
of the commi ssion staff for an answer. In response to a follow
up question from Representative Guenberg as to whether that
time period has increased, decreased, or remined steady over
time, he offered a gut response that after adding one hearing
officer, the commssion is "on the road to decrease that tine."

8:23: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked M. Eledge if he has any
experience, training, or longstanding interest in human rights
i ssues.

MR. ELEDGE said he mmjored in Managenment in school back in the

'70s, when perhaps the issues of human rights were not focused
on as much as they are now. Notwi t hst andi ng that, he reveal ed

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 21, 2006



that he ran his own business for nine years, which taught himto
be know edgeabl e about human rights issues. He offered sone
exanpl es.

8:26:24 AM
MR. ELEDGE, in response to a question from Representative Lynn,

said he had expressed his desire to serve the State of Al aska,
and the Human Ri ghts Conm ssion was one for which he felt he had

"a bit of a frame of reference.” He stated his hope was to
bring to the commssion his fairness and ability to make
deci si ons. I n response to fol |l ow up guesti ons from

Representative Lynn, he recalled the steps that were taken to
get himinto his present position, but he could not relate what
type of service brought hinself to the attention of the
governor's offi ce.

8:29:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Eledge if he, or any of his
friends or associates, has ever been involved in a proceeding
before the Human Ri ghts Comm ssi on.

MR. ELEDGE nentioned wage and hour disputes that could be
construed as sonething that the Human Rights Comm ssion shoul d
have | ooked into. He also nmentioned "a |lady on the slope that
was sexual ly discrimnated against."” He indicated that no one
has requested his counsel or guidance "in that arena."”

8:31:54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER read from a paper entitled, "Notice of
Proposed Changes in the Regulations of the Alaska State
Comm ssion for Human Rights,"” dated February 10, and signed by
St ephen Koteff, Chief of Enforcenment. She noted that the notice
i ncludes the | anguage to which she had previously referred. She
asked M. Eledge, "Do you know if these changes are discussed by
the comm ssion, or is there one person who sort of does it al
in the nane of the conm ssion?"

MR. ELEDGE said the commi ssion nakes decisions together. He
said he was present at the nost recent neeting, but cannot find
the packet of information that would help him to answer
Representative Gardner's question about the aforenentioned
| anguage wi thout msstating the matter.

8:34: 14 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 21, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he has heard that the Human Ri ghts
Commi ssion is less effective than it has been in past years. He
asked for M. Eledge's response.

MR, ELEDGE stated that he takes that comment personally, and he
guesti oned what neasuring devise was used to cone up with that
st at enment . He posited that the current conm ssion staff is one
of the nost professional that he has had the opportunity to
interact with. He offered further details.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said the comrent he had heard was not
made with any specificity, thus he does not know if it had
anything to do with funding issues, or sonething like that. He
stated for the record that nothing he has said today was neant
to be taken personally.

8:36:40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved to forward the nanme of Randall H
Eledge to the joint session of the House and Senate for
confirmation.

8:38: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER obj ect ed. She stated concern that after
serving a year on the commi ssion, M. Eledge is unable to answer
a question about a change "that's com ng through just in recent
weeks. " She said she doesn't see anything in M. Eledge's
background that shows that he is the best available for the
comm ssi on, thus, she has concerns.

8:38: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that he is not certain how he
will vote.

8:39: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he has concerns about what he is not
heari ng, but nonetheless will not oppose the notion.

8:39: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER renoved her objection. There being no
further objections, the confirmation of Randall H El edge was
advanced fromthe House State Affairs Standing Comm ttee.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 21, 2006



MR. ELEDGE added that he would draft and send a letter to
Representative Gardner in response to her concerns.

8:40: 43 AM

HIR 27- ALLOTMENTS FOR NATI VE VI ETNAM VETERANS

8:40: 47 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
JONT RESCLUTION NO 27, Urging the United States Congress to
pass legislation amending the Al aska Native Vietnam Veterans
Allotnment Act to allow deserving veterans to obtain allotnents
of vacant land within the State of Al aska; and to reopen and
| egi slatively approve allotnments in the Tongass National Forest.

8:40: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COCGHI LL, Al aska State Legislature, introduced HIR
27 as sponsor. He said the proposed legislation will "dove
tail™ with two bills currently in the U S. Congress: H R 1811,
by U S. Congressnman Don Young, and S. 2000, by U S. Senator Lisa

Mur kowsKki . He said the Native allotnment has an interesting
hi story, having been initiated in 1906. Through the Twentieth
Century, he said, only a handful of allotnments "cane to be." He

said the Allotnment Act was [repealed] in 1971, but was reopened
in 1998 [through Public Law 105-276] to allow certain Vietnam
veterans to apply. The problem Representative Coghill
explained, is that U S. Congress set the definition of a Vietnam
veteran as one who served from [January 1, 1969, to Decenber 31,
1971], when actually [the Vietnam conflict began August 5, 1964,
and ended My 7, 1975]. He indicated that the tw bills
currently in US. Congress would extend the dates to enconpass
t hat w der range.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL stated that HIR 27 will ask U S. Congress
to open up legislatively approved land allotnents, t he
qualification of which would vary slightly from the original

gqualifications. He explained that sone |ands have been sel ected
for national forests, reserves, and parks and, thus, are "now
really off the table.” He said, "They had to prove sonme use of

that land previous to that, and this bill would open it up to
allowwng themto get lands that are available, even though they
didn't particularly use those." Representative Coghill said he
thinks that's fair. He said the allotnents would be selected

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- March 21, 2006



primarily from federal lands, but if any state Iland issues
arise, he said he is conmtted to follow ng themthrough

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL indicated that HIR 27 will focus on those
Vi et nam vet erans who were out of state, serving the country at a
time when the application process was being shut down. He
added, "And then when they did reopen it, it was so cunbersone,
it was hard to get to sone of those people; many of them didn't
even know they could apply.”

8:44:52 AM

REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL said the bill would also require the
reexam nation of a court case: Shields v. United States, 698
F.2d 987 (9 Cir., 1983), which closed down allotnments in the
Tongass National Forest. He said there were approximtely 300

allotnments left hanging as a result of that particular court
decision. He noted that the House Special Conmttee on Mlitary
and Veterans' Affairs assisted him in deciding who should
recei ve the resol ution.

8:47:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE = COGHI LL, in response to a request for
clarification from Representative Gardner, explained that the
application process itself was unfair; it was conplex and not
wel | orchestrat ed. Many mlitary participants did not even get
notified. Anot her fairness issue, he said, stens all the way

from the beginning of the allotnments to the tinme that the Act
was repeal ed. He said, "Up until the tinme that they said they
were going to close them just a handful of allotnments had even
been applied for, because it was probably one of the best kept

secrets of that century. So, there's kind of a generational
fairness issue there." Furthernore, when the applications did
come in there was sone confusion as to the process. He

reiterated the issue of the discrepancy in the actual Vietnam
War dates and said that, too, was a fairness issue.

8:49: 08 AM

CHAI R SEATON directed attention to [the |ast paragraph] on page
7 of 58, within tab 1, of the handout from the sponsor entitled,
"A Report Concerning Al aska Native Allotments And Al aska Native
Vi etnam Veteran Al lotnments,” which read:

To account for the significant nunbers of veterans not
enrolled or not listed, adding 20 percent (see Section

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- March 21, 2006



V) to the nunber of enrolled veterans who did not
apply (nunber 1 below) equals about 2,750. To account
for possible additional unforeseen applicants, we have
adapted a figure of 2,800 as the top estimate of
possi bl e applicants.

8:50: 13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said that would be the upper nunber, but
the reality is that not all of them would apply. 1In response to
a followup question from Chair Seaton, he explained his
prediction that not all would apply is based on history. He

said, "At the tine that they were closing the Native allotnents
there were probably 58,000 Natives, and | think at that point
there [were] only about 10,000 applications."”

8:51: 02 AM

CHAI R SEATON said at that tinme a person had to show "a use of
the specific piece of land" to get the allotnment, but that would
not be required with the new opening. He said it seens |ike
t hat woul d make nore people want to apply.

8:51: 51 AM
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said, "I think that there would still
have to be a historical connection." He said the use and

occupancy requirenments would [require] |egislative approval.
8:53: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if heirs of the veteran will be
able to apply, should that veteran die.

8:54:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he doesn't know.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he hopes so.

8:54:56 AM

CAROL YEATMAN, Supervising Attorney, Native Allotnment Program
Al aska Legal Services Corporation, told the conmttee that she
has wor ked exclusively for Native allotnent clients for the | ast

7.5 years. She thanked Representative Coghill for sponsoring
HIR 27. She enphasized the inportance of the proposed

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 21, 2006



resol ution because it would encourage U S. Congress to "do what
is right for many of Al aska's citizens."

M5. YEATMAN said HIR 7 would provide a chance for obtaining
al | ot nent in the Tongass National For est, which three
generations of people |lost when the |and was w thdrawn | ong ago.
She said the federal governnent developed a rule that the |and
must be used prior to the land's withdrawal in order to be
eligible for an all otnent.

9:00: 42 AM

M5. YEATMAN offered sone of the history of the Native allotnents
since territorial days. Many Natives died when forced from
their | ands. Presi dent Roosevelt was encouraged to pass a |aw

that would give Al aska Natives title to land that they needed to
survive, which was the birth of the Al aska Native Allotnment Act
of 1906. She echoed Representative Coghill's previous remark
that the Native allotnment was the best-kept secret that the
gover nnment had. Very few Native people in Al aska spoke English

at the time and there were no notices or advertisenents. By
1955, there were only a handful of allotnents that had been
certified - 79 total. Ms. Yeatman said in 1970 the Bureau of

Indian Affairs (BIA) realized that there was only one year |eft
before the Native Cains Settlenment Act would repeal allotnents,
so "they set out in one year to try to cover the entire state
and collect applications.” At that tine, she noted, there were
an estimted 60,000 Al aska Natives, but only 8,000 applications
were filed in the year prior to the repeal of the Act, which she
said "is nothing conmpared to the nunber of ... Native people
that were here and should have applied."”

9:03:22 AM

M5. YEATMAN said she thinks it was because of Senator Ted
Steven's frustration wth the slowness of processing the Native
al l otnent applications, that a provision was put into the Al aska
National Interest Lands Conservation Act (AN LCA) that allowed

for legislative approval. She said Senator Stevens' intent to
have | egislative approval was to shortcut a 20-year process into
six nonths, or |ess. The only problem with the legislative

approval provision for the regular allotnents, she said, was
that there were a nunber of exceptions. For exanple, the state
was given veto power over |egislative approval, and the
Department of Natural Resources filed protests which initiated
the veto power for approximtely 6,000 applications.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 21, 2006



M5. YEATMAN enphasized the inportance of having |egislative
approval . She revealed that BLM officials came to her several
nmonths ago asking for her support of legislation that would
apply legislative approval to the 200 pending veteran all otnent
applications that it decided nmust go to hearing. Ms. Yeat man
estimated that if legislative approval is not applied to those
200 applications, it would take about 50 years for BLM to
finally process them

9:06: 26 AM

M5. YEATMAN stated that the other result of the legislative
approval provision is that it "elimnates the conflict wth
ot her lands." She expl ai ned:

| f use and occupancy is required again like it was in
the existing law, what that neans is people can only
apply for land they can use. Much of that land is
unavail able; it's been selected and patented to the
state and native corporations, and therefore, there's
little land available that sonebody used. .
Legi sl ati ve approval neans they can select |and that
is vacant federal land or |land that the corporation of
the state will voluntarily relinquish, and so there's
no need to have the conflicts that are inherent in the
exi sting | aw.

9:07:21 AM

M5. YEATMAN addressed the previous question related to how many
applicants there may be if the applications are opened to the

entire Vietnam Nam era. She said it is estimated that there
woul d be 2,800, sonme of which would not apply because they have
al ready received allotnents. A nunmber of veterans applied but
are not eligible under the existing or anended |[aw. She

explained that a veteran has a second chance to apply for an
al l ot nent, but does not get nore than one all otnent.

9: 09: 35 AM
MS. YEATMAN said another factor that would reduce the nunber of

applicants is that the anendnent allows veteran allotnents on
vacant federal |and; however, there are areas around the state

that have no vacant federal | and. The next step, she said,
would be to try to find corporation or state land that the
corporation or the state is willing to give up. She stated that

in Septenber 2000, the then commssioner of DNR issued a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- March 21, 2006



menor andum describing the types of land that the state would be
willing to give up if the |law was changed to allow the state to
do so. Many corporations have also said they would do the sane.
Ms. Yeatman said she is certain there will be people who need to
apply for state or corporation | and, because that is all that is
near by. Ms. Yeatman said there are also several hundred
veterans who have pending veteran allotnents now who would not
apply under the new anended versions.

M5. YEATMAN said she thinks there have been questions regarding
why Al aska Native Vietnam Nam veterans want an allotment in the
first place. She said environnental groups have inplied that
casinos with blinking neon lights will be opened in the forests.
Ms. Yeatman revealed that anmong the up to 1,000 veterans that
she has spoken with over the past 4-5 years, there is one comon
thread they all share: the reason they want an allotnent is to
mai ntain a subsistence lifestyle conprised of fishing, hunting,
and trapping. Therefore, they want to choose |and [cl ose enough
to where they live] in order to carry out those activities.
Many want part of the land that has been traditionally used.
She said that is especially true in Southeast Al aska. She said
there are approximately 578 Vietnam veterans in Southeast Al aska
that are conpletely excluded wunder the existing Veteran's
Al l otment Act, because the Act expressly states that veteran
allotments are not allowed in national forests. Ms. Yeat man
pointed out that if each one of those veterans received 160
acres, which is the mxinmm anount allowed, that would only
anopunt to approximately 92,500 acres out of the 19.8 mllion
acres of national forest.

9:13: 08 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked Ms. Yeatman if she is saying that if eligible
Native Vietnam veterans could not apply for land near to where
they live, they would not apply at all.

9:13: 37 AM

M5. YEATMAN responded that she does know that a nunber of
veterans did apply for land on which they could hunt, fish, or
trap, but those lands were state or corporation |ands and not
avail able for veteran allotnents under existing |aw She sai d,
"Let's say the anendnent goes through, and they're allowed to
pick state or corporation land, they still aren't going to get
an allotnent unless the state or the corporation agrees to give
it up.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 21, 2006



9:14:52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if there was a requirenment that the

federal governnent "advise people of some opportunities,” and
barring that, if the BIA has "an obligation." He asked if it
woul d have been considered "normal past practice” if those

obl i gations don't exist.
9:15:29 AM

V. YEATMAN stated her understanding that the [federal]
government did have an obligation to provide notice of Native
all otnents beginning in 1906. She stated her reason to believe
that is that when the honestead |aws were applied in Al aska,
much notice was given, thus, at the very least, to be fair,
Al aska Natives should have been informed about the Act. She
said the second reason she believes that, is that the purpose
behind the Native Allotnment Act of 1906 was to protect the |and
that Native people use to get food.

9:16: 38 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked when the BI A cane i nto exi stence.
9:16: 49 AM

M5. YEATMAN stated that the predecessor to the BIA was the
Departnent of War, followed by the Departnent of Education. She
said the BIA began in the 30s or 40s. She stated, "The Bureau
of Indian Affairs and [its] predecessor, |[the] Bureau of
Education, certainly did have a responsibility for informng
Al aska Natives about the allotment opportunity.”

9:18: 56 AM

M5. YEATMAN, in response to a question from Chair Seaton, said
the latest figure that she has fromthe BLMis that there were a
total of 743 applications filed for veteran allotnents.

9:19: 07 AM

CHAI R SEATON observed that that nunber is different than the
information [on page 7 of 58]. He asked Ms. Yeatnman to send her

source by facsimle to his staff.

9:19:40 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 21, 2006



M5. YEATMAN clarified that the report to which Chair Seaton is
referring was issued prior to the applications for veteran
allotnents, which were taken from July 31, 2000, to the closure
on January 31, 2002.

CHAI R SEATON again referred to |anguage on page 7 of 58,

r ead

as foll ows:

The fourth through sixth periods are subsets of the
third period to determ ne how many veterans may have
had time to apply during the third period, because
they were not in active mlitary service over the
entire period. Overall, 179 of 2,469 enrolled Al aska
Native Vietnam Era veterans applied for allotnents.

whi ch

CHAI R SEATON asked Ms. Yeatnman if she is saying that "this was
previous to that under the allotnent,” and there was another
openi ng in 2000.

MS. YEATMAN responded:

MS.
clari

| think the nunber that they're talking about ... is
the nunber of veterans that have applied under the
Al aska Native Allotnent Act of 1906. So, if you take
that figure, and you add it to the 743 applications
that were filed by veterans for a veterans' all otnent,
you'll have sone idea about how many vyou could
subtract fromthe 2,800 nunber.

I'd like to also just say a few words about those
nunbers. \Wen you | ook at the state of Al aska and you
realize that the ... federally owned land is 60
percent of the state, or about 240 mllion acres, and
that the forest service has managenent authority over
19.8 mllion acres, and that private |and today
represents less than 1 percent of the total, it's
pretty clear that even if the 2,800 veterans received
allotnents, it wouldn't really nake a dent in the
nunmber of federally owned acres. And under the
federally granted land prograns, Native allotnents
that are certified today only represent 48 percent of
the total. So, we are talking about a very small
anount of |and, even though maybe 2,800 seens |ike a
| ot of people.

YEATMAN, in response to a question from Chair Seaton,

fied that Native allotnments are 48 percent of the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- March 21,

t ot al

2006



nunber of acres of federally granted |land, or |and that has been
conveyed to private individuals under sone sort of federa
program including Native allotnments, honesteads, mning clains,
and trade manufacturing sites.

9:22:52 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked, "So, 48 percent of the current distribution
of federal lands to private individuals through those different
mechanisns is in Native allotnent?"

9: 23: 03 AM
M5. YEATMAN answered that's correct.
9:23: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if it is an accurate statement to
say that a Native of Southeast Al aska, not being able to get an
allotnent near hone, because it is in the Tongass National
Forest, and subsequently being refused an allotnent from the
state or a corporation, would then have to seek land further
away from hi s/ her hone.

9:24:12 AM

M5. YEATMAN said she thinks that person would be supportive of
the anmendments to the Act, because under the anmended |aw it
would be possible for that person to apply for his/her
traditional |ands. She explained that the anended |aw woul d
include the Tongass National Forrest, which has in it vacant
federal land. She said a person who cannot get |and nearby his/
her hone will nost |ikely not apply, because he/she would not
want to attenpt to subsist off of land that far away.

9:25:34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if there is anything that would
prevent a person from getting an allotnent far from hone,
selling it, and using the noney to buy |and cl oser to hone.

9: 25: 54 AM

M5. YEATMAN responded that although that could be done, she
doesn't know of anyone who has done it.

9: 26: 24 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 21, 2006



M5. YEATMAN, in response to a request from Chair Seaton, she
reiterated the definition of vacant federal I|and.

9:27: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if there are any restrictions to
what a Native person could do with a | and all ot nent.

9:27:27 AM

M5. YEATMAN answered that there are no restrictions; an
allotnent recipient has "alnost all the sane rights as [a]
private | andowner."

9:28: 04 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if the allotnments could be anywhere within a
nati onal park, provided national parks were opened.

9:28: 30 AM

M5. YEATMAN replied that's correct.

9:28: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked what kind of criteria and tineline

the BIA would use or require if a Native veteran were to gain an
all otnent and wanted to do sonmething with the |and.

9:28: 58 AM

M5. YEATMAN said it takes one to five years to get that
approval . She said the only criterion that is applied is that
the sale of restricted property, such as Native allotnents, nust
get fair mrket value (FW). She said BIA has a process by
which it appraises the allotnment and then it is put out for
sal e. She said it's a fairly sinple process, but for sone

reason it does take a lot of tine.

9:31: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked Ms. Yeatman if HIR 27 would all ow
heirs of deceased Native Vietnam veterans to apply for the
al | ot ment .

9:31:47 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 21, 2006



M5. YEATMAN replied, "Under existing law, the answer is no;
under the anmended version, the answer is yes." She shared that
one of the nobst heartbreaking tasks that she has experienced has
been to advise people who ask her why they can't apply for a
veteran allotnment for a relative who died between 1971 and when
the allotnent applications opened in July 2000.

9:31: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked Ms. Yeatman to confirmthat "this
will cure it" not only for new applicants, but also for those
heirs who were deni ed under existing |aw

9:32: 13 AM

MS. YEATMAN answered that's correct. |In response to a follow up

guestion from Representative Guenberg, she said the proposed

resolution "recognizes that by supporting the anmendnents that

are currently in Congress." She added, "Both versions - the one

in the [U S. House of Representatives] and the [U S.] Senate -
have that provision in it.

9:32: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG r ecommended i ncl udi ng anot her "whereas”
in the resolution "so that we specifically recogni ze and endorse
t hat . "

9: 33: 37 AM

M5. YEATMAN, in response to a question from Representative
G uenberg, said both the existing and amended | anguage cover all
those who served honorably in the mlitary during the Vietnam
Era, not just those who actually served over in Vietnam

9:34: 34 AM

M5. YEATMAN, in response to Representative G uenberg, explained
that when she had previously nentioned a proposal that the BLM
came to her with sone nonths ago, she was tal king about the
BLMs desire to get legislative approval for the existing 200
pendi ng veteran allotnent cases. She said that process is stil
in the works.

9:36: 25 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 21, 2006



CHAI R SEATON asked Representative Guenberg to contact M.
Yeat man for further discussion not related directly to the bill.

9: 36: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked Ms. Yeatman if HIR 27 should al so
urge adequat e fundi ng.

9:37:16 AM

M5. YEATMAN said she is not certain that is necessary, because
if the new law is passed, there will be legislative approval,
whi ch, as she previously stated, will shorten the tine from a
20-year to a 6-nonth process. She said she doesn't think that
woul d be an added fiscal burden to the federal governnent. She
stated that there may be an added fiscal burden to the state in
devel oping sone sort of procedure for voluntarily relinquishing
| and. She said, "I think the funding is already in place for
the Bureau of Land Managenent and certainly for the Bureau of
I ndian Affairs to deal with allotnents.”

9: 38: 46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO, regarding a situation where the applicant
has died, asked if the application stays open in the hope that a
resolution will be passed that will allow the heirs to pick up
t he application.

9:39: 04 AM

MS. YEATMAN stated that that issue was actually litigated years
ago, because it was the position of the Departnent of Interior
that once the applicant died, the heirs inherited no right to
continue to get the allotnent. However, the federal district
court said allotnment applicant heirs certainly have the right to
continue trying to get the allotnment. M. Yeatnman reveal ed that
she worked at her position for several years before actually

getting "a live applicant client.” Because nost of the cases
she took were from Sout heast Al aska, there were few allotnents

She said, "I think there [are] about 50 total now in Southeast
Al aska, and of course the people that would have been eligible
had to have been at least six by ... 1909, so they were nostly
deceased."” She said many of her clients were the great, great-

grandchi l dren of those deceased veterans.

9:40: 26 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 21, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked for a definition for legislative
approval .

9:40: 34 AM
M5. YEATMAN prof f er ed:

That term neans that [U S.] Congress is approving that
al | ot ment . As long as there's no |egal defect, then
it gets approved automatically. It's a shortcut to
having to prove that sonebody used the |and under the
governing | aws.

9:40: 57 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if both U. S. Senator Mirkowski

and U S. Representative Young's bills neet the legal definition
and requirenment of "legislative approval."

9:41:11 AM

M5. YEATMAN replied, "Legislative approval is in the anendnents
that are in ... [US.] Congress.” She offered further details.
9:41: 37 AM

JIM McCRACKEN, testifying on behalf of hinmself, said he is a
Vi et nam vet er an. He said having heard through testinony that
there are 240 mllion acres of federal land, of which
approximately 1 percent are private, he is requesting that the
committee investigate an anendnent to include all Al askan

veterans of the Vietnam Era that were Al aska residents when
drafted or enli sted.

9:43: 16 AM

CHAI R SEATON ascertained that there was no one else to testify.
9:43:38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said M. Yeatnman nentioned potenti al
BLM | egi slation that would short circuit the 200 allotnents, and
he asked Representative Coghill if he would like to include

| anguage in HIR 27 supporting that.

9:44: 26 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 21, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL answered probably not. He said he chose
not to reference even the tw U S.  Congress pieces of
|l egislation in the resolution, because he wants to nmake a policy

st at enent . He added, "If it can be used for those two bills,
that's fine, but if there are other bills that are involved in
it, I wanted the policy statenent to be pushed al ong."

9:45: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked, "Do you want that to nake a
policy statenment urging [U S.] Congress to do what it can to
speed up the existing all otnents?"

9:45: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COCGHI LL responded that he thinks that's what is
bei ng asked for by asking for a "reopener." He said, "I don't
think we can speed it wup until we get a reopener, quite
frankly."

9:45: 40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d no. He clarified, "Because what
the BLM folks are saying would not involve a reopener; it's
totally separate. It takes the existing allotnents and gives
| egi sl ative approval so they don't have to have a hearing. | t
doesn't involve a reopener at all, but we'll get those 200 out."
9:45: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said that may be a good thing to do, but
not in this resolution, wherein, he opined, the two focuses are
enough.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL, in response to a concern stated by
Representative Guenberg, said he would entertain an anmendnent
on page 2, line 27, that would insert "and their heirs" after
"Al aska Native Vietnam veterans”

9:47:22 AM

CHAI R SEATON noted that Ms. Yeatman had said the appeals court
had already nade that deci si on, so he suggested that
Representative Coghill speak wth M. Yeatman [about the

necessity of that |anguage].

9:47: 40 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 21, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL expressed his intent to examne the
i ssue.

9:47:54 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if Representative Coghill understands, as was
testified today, that "this" would allow for allotnments wthin
Denali National Park and Preserve and other parks within the
state.

9:48: 11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL responded, "'Could," 'may,' and "'wll’
are very, very different things, and so I think we need to give
them the opportunity to apply, but | can tell you this is an

uphill battle.” He continued:

| think through the vetting process, not only has the

land title changed significantly from 1906 until now,
but also the processes have changed. So, | don't fear
m suse of this at all. In fact, |I think just fairness

says getting lands into these hands is going to be no
smal | task.

9:48: 55 AM

CHAIR SEATON clarified that he wasn't saying he thinks there
woul d be m suse. He was just pointing out that according to
[ Ms. Yeatman], vacant |ands are defined as those in the national
forests and parks. He said there is a |ot of vacant |and and he
presunes that heirs to [Vietnam Era veterans] would be applying
for wvaluable |and. He suggested the sponsor nmay want to
consider this issue, as well.

9:49: 33 AM

CHAIR SEATON clarified the questions that the conmttee would
i ke answered at the next hearing.

[ HIR 27 was heard and hel d. ]
9: 50: 37 AM

HB 45- CONTRI BUTI ONS, LOBBYI STS, DI SCLOSURE

9:50: 41 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 23- March 21, 2006



CHAI R SEATON announced that the |ast order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 45, "An Act anmending the definition of the term
"l obbyist' in the Regulation of Lobbying Act; and providing for
an effective date.™

9:50: 51 AM

CHAIR SEATON inforned the commttee that there are sone
anendnents com ng, although they are not yet available. He
asked if there are any questions for which the sponsor can
provi de answers at the next hearing on HB 45.

9:51:38 AM

CHAI R SEATON, upon determining there was no one who w shed to
testify and there were no questions for the representative from
the Alaska Public Ofices Conmission (APOC), closed public
t esti nony.

[ HB 45 was heard and hel d. ]

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 9:52
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 21, 2006



